ALPHA & OMEGA SEMICONDUCTOR Ltd

Form 10-Q May 09, 2014

**UNITED STATES** 

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

EODM 10 O

FORM 10-Q

\_\_\_\_

(MARK ONE)

x QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the quarterly period ended March 31, 2014

OR

o TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

FOR THE TRANSITION PERIOD FROM TO

Commission file number 001-34717

Alpha and Omega Semiconductor Limited

(Exact name of Registrant as Specified in its Charter)

Bermuda 77-0553536

(State or Other Jurisdiction of Incorporation or

Organization)

Clarendon House, 2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda

(Address of Principal Registered

Offices including Zip Code)

(408) 830-9742

(Registrant's Telephone Number, Including Area Code)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months, (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes x No o

(I.R.S. Employer Identification Number)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§ 232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files). Yes x No o

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer or smaller reporting company. See definitions of "large accelerated filer," "accelerated filer" and "smaller reporting company" in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated Accelerated Non-accelerated filer o

filer o filer x

(Do not check if a smaller reporting company)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). Yes o No x

Number of common shares outstanding as of April 30, 2014: 26,132,654.

Alpha and Omega Semiconductor Limited Form 10-Q Fiscal Third Quarter Ended March 31, 2014 TABLE OF CONTENTS

		Page
Part I.	FINANCIAL INFORMATION	
Item 1.	<u>Financial Statements:</u>	<u>1</u>
	Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets as of March 31, 2014 and June 30, 2013	1
	(Unaudited)	<u> </u>
	Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations for the Three and Nine Months	2
	Ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 (Unaudited)	-
	Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Loss for the Three and Nine	<u>3</u>
	Months Ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 (Unaudited)	_
	Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Nine Months Ended March	<u>4</u>
	31, 2014 and 2013 (Unaudited)	
	Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)	<u>5</u>
Item 2.	Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of	<u>15</u>
	Operations	
Item 3.	Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk	<u>25</u>
Item 4.	Controls and Procedures	<u>25</u>
Part II.	OTHER INFORMATION	
Item 1.	<u>Legal Proceedings</u>	<u> 26</u>
Item 1A.	Risk Factors	<u> 26</u>
Item 2.	Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds	<u> 26</u>
Item 3.	Defaults Upon Senior Securities	<u> 26</u>
Item 4.	Mine Safety Disclosures	<u> 26</u>
Item 5.	Other Information	<u> 26</u>
Item 6.	Exhibits	<u>27</u>
	<u>Signatures</u>	<u>28</u>

#### PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

#### ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

# ALPHA AND OMEGA SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(Unaudited, in thousands except par value per share)

	March 31, 2014	June 30, 2013
ASSETS		
Current assets:		
Cash and cash equivalents	\$110,634	\$92,406
Restricted cash	203	204
Accounts receivable, net	37,151	38,298
Inventories	59,802	68,339
Deferred income tax assets	1,701	3,030
Other current assets	3,736	3,578
Total current assets	213,227	205,855
Property, plant and equipment, net	123,686	138,111
Intangible assets, net	213	496
Goodwill	269	269
Deferred income tax assets - long term	10,751	10,823
Other long-term assets	1,618	767
Total assets	\$349,764	\$356,321
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY		
Current liabilities:		
Short term debt	\$3,107	\$3,821
Accounts payable	27,949	31,738
Accrued liabilities	16,910	14,571
Income taxes payable	1,656	1,472
Deferred margin	629	622
Capital leases	453	1,267
Total current liabilities	50,704	53,491
Long-term debt	11,429	13,571
Income taxes payable - long term	2,383	3,692
Deferred income tax liabilities	2,164	2,613
Capital leases - long term	83	195
Deferred rent	1,187	1,308
Total liabilities	67,950	74,870
Commitments and contingencies (Note 9)		
Shareholders' equity:		
Preferred shares, par value \$0.002 per share:		
Authorized: 10,000 shares, issued and outstanding: none at March 31, 2014 and		_
June 30, 2013		
Common shares, par value \$0.002 per share:		
Authorized: 50,000 shares, issued and outstanding: 26,345 shares and 26,125	53	51
shares at March 31, 2014 and 25,882 shares and 25,656 shares at June 30, 2013		
	(1,973	) (2,054

Treasury shares at cost, 220 shares at March 31, 2014 and 226 shares at June 30,

1 ~

Additional paid-in capital	171,524	168,352
Accumulated other comprehensive income	975	957
Retained earnings	111,235	114,145
Total shareholders' equity	281,814	281,451
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity	\$349,764	\$356,321

See accompanying notes to these condensed consolidated financial statements.

### Table of Contents

# ALPHA AND OMEGA SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(Unaudited, in thousands except per share data)

	Three Month 31,	s Ended March	Nine Months 31,	Ended March
	2014	2013	2014	2013
Revenue	\$75,405	\$75,015	\$235,791	\$260,224
Cost of goods sold	63,095	69,770	192,711	208,852
Gross profit	12,310	5,245	43,080	51,372
Operating expenses				
Research and development	5,977	6,876	17,796	20,675
Selling, general and administrative	9,256	8,917	25,505	26,536
Impairment of long-lived assets		2,557	_	2,557
Total operating expenses	15,233	18,350	43,301	49,768
Operating income (loss)	(2,923	) (13,105	) (221	1,604
Interest income	52	22	90	59
Interest expense	(62	) (93	(210	) (282
Income (loss) before income taxes	(2,933	) (13,176	) (341	1,381
Income tax expense (benefit)	361	(3	2,486	2,894
Net loss	\$(3,294	) \$(13,173	\$(2,827)	\$(1,513)
Net loss per share				
Basic	\$(0.13	) \$(0.52	\$(0.11	) \$(0.06)
Diluted	\$(0.13	) \$(0.52	\$(0.11	\$ (0.06)
Weighted average number of common shares used to compute net loss per share				
Basic	26,067	25,467	25,865	25,266
Diluted	26,067	25,467	25,865	25,266

See accompanying notes to these condensed consolidated financial statements.

### Table of Contents

# ALPHA AND OMEGA SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE LOSS (Unaudited, in thousands)

	Three Months Ended March				
	31,		31,		
	2014	2013	2014	2013	
Net loss	\$(3,294	) \$(13,173	\$(2,827	) \$(1,513	)
Foreign currency translation adjustment	(31	) (48	18	7	
Total comprehensive loss	\$(3,325	) \$(13,221	\$(2,809	) \$(1,506	)

See accompanying notes to these condensed consolidated financial statements.

### Table of Contents

# ALPHA AND OMEGA SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Unaudited, in thousands)

	Nine Months Er 2014	nded March 31, 2013	
Cash flows from operating activities			
Net loss	\$(2,827	) \$(1,513	)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by operating activities:			
Depreciation	20,577	21,872	
Amortization	283	429	
Allowance for doubtful accounts	(363	) —	
Share-based compensation expense	2,175	3,576	
Deferred income taxes, net	952	510	
(Gain) loss on disposal of property and equipment	(120	) 138	
Impairment of long-lived assets		2,557	
Changes in assets and liabilities:			
Accounts receivable	1,509	9,038	
Inventories	8,538	(1,315	)
Other current and long-term assets	(1,008	) 602	
Accounts payable	(3,683	) 5,442	
Income taxes payable	(1,125	) 633	
Accrued and other liabilities	2,053	(5,716	)
Net cash provided by operating activities	26,961	36,253	
Cash flows from investing activities			
Purchases of property and equipment	(6,462	) (14,046	)
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment	244		
Restricted cash released	1	35	
Net cash used in investing activities	(6,217	) (14,011	)
Cash flows from financing activities			
Proceeds from exercise of stock options and ESPP	1,279	2,255	
Payment for repurchase of common shares		(5	)
Proceeds from borrowings		250	
Repayments of borrowings	(2,857	) (2,143	)
Principal payments on capital leases	(927	) (726	)
Net cash used in financing activities	(2,505	) (369	)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents	(11	) 1	
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents	18,228	21,874	
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period	92,406	82,166	
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period	\$110,634	\$104,040	
Supplemental disclosures of non-cash investing and financing information:			
Property and equipment purchased but not yet paid	\$1,635	\$3,430	
Re-issuance of treasury stock	\$83	\$153	

See accompanying notes to these condensed consolidated financial statements.

ALPHA AND OMEGA SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited)

#### 1. The Company and Significant Accounting Policies

The Company

Alpha and Omega Semiconductor Limited and its subsidiaries (the "Company," "AOS," "we" or "us") design, develop and supply a broad range of power semiconductors. The Company's portfolio of products targets high-volume applications, including portable computers, flat panel TVs, LED lighting, smart phones, battery packs, consumer and industrial motor controls and power supplies for TVs, computers, servers and telecommunications equipment. The Company conducts its operations primarily in the United States of America ("USA"), Hong Kong, Macau, China, Taiwan, Korea and Japan.

#### **Basis of Preparation**

The accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States ("U.S. GAAP") for interim financial information and with the instructions to Article 10 of Securities and Exchange Commission Regulation S-X, as amended. They do not include all information and footnotes necessary for a fair presentation of financial position, results of operations and cash flows in conformity with U.S. GAAP for complete financial statements. These condensed consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and related notes contained in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013. All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. In the opinion of management, all adjustments (consisting of normal recurring adjustments and accruals) considered necessary for a fair presentation of the results of operations for the period presented have been included in the interim periods. Operating results for the three and nine months ended March 31, 2014 are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014. The condensed consolidated balance sheet at June 30, 2013 is derived from the audited financial statements included in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013. Use of Estimates

The preparation of the condensed consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires the Company to make estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses. To the extent there are material differences between these estimates and actual results, the Company's condensed consolidated financial statements will be affected. On an ongoing basis, the Company evaluates the estimates, judgments and assumptions including those related to stock rotation returns, price adjustments, allowance for doubtful accounts, inventory reserves, warranty accrual, income taxes, share-based compensation, variable interest entities, and useful lives for property, plant and equipment and intangible assets.

#### Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The fair value of cash equivalents are based on observable market prices and have been categorized in Level 1 in the fair value hierarchy. Cash equivalents consist primarily of short term bank deposits. The carrying values of financial instruments such as cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and accounts payable approximate their carrying values due to their short-term maturities. The carrying value of the Company's debt is considered a reasonable estimate of fair value which is estimated by considering the current rates available to the Company for debt of the same remaining maturities, structure and terms of the debts.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets or asset groups are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset might not be recoverable. Factors that would necessitate an impairment assessment include a significant decline in the observable market value of an asset, a significant change in the extent or manner in which an asset is used, or any other significant adverse change that would indicate that the carrying amount of an asset or group of assets may not be recoverable. Where such factors indicate potential impairment, the recoverability of an asset or asset group is assessed by determining if the carrying value of the asset or asset group

exceeds the sum of the projected undiscounted cash flows expected to result from the use and eventual disposition of the assets over the remaining economic life. The impairment loss is measured based on the difference between the carrying amount and estimated fair value.

# ALPHA AND OMEGA SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited)

#### Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Comprehensive income (loss) is defined as the change in equity of a business enterprise during a period from transactions and other events and circumstances from non-owner sources. The Company's accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) consists of cumulative foreign currency translation adjustments. Total comprehensive income (loss) is presented in the condensed consolidated statements of comprehensive income (loss). Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In July 2013, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (the "FASB") issued Accounting Standards Update ("ASU") 2013-11, Income Taxes (Topic 740) Presentation of an Unrecognized Tax Benefit When a Net Operating Loss Carryforward, a Similar Tax Loss, or a Tax Credit Carryforward Exists. The new guidance requires the netting of unrecognized tax benefits ("UTBs") against a deferred tax asset for a loss or other carryforward that would apply in settlement of the uncertain tax positions. Under the new standard, UTBs will be netted against all available same-jurisdiction loss or other tax carryforwards that would be utilized, rather than only against carryforwards that are created by the UTBs. The ASU is effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those years, beginning after December 15, 2013. Early adoption is permitted. The ASU should be applied prospectively to all unrecognized tax benefits that exist at the effective date. Retrospective application is permitted. The Company does not expect the adoption of this guidance to have any significant impact on the Company's condensed consolidated financial statements.

#### 2. Net Loss Per Share

The following table presents the calculation of basic and diluted net loss per share:

The following date presents the ediculation of busic and		ths Ended March	Nine Months Ended Marc		
	31,		31,		
	2014	2013	2014	2013	
	(in thousar	nds, except per share	e data)		
Numerator:					
Net loss	\$(3,294	) \$(13,173 )	\$(2,827	) \$(1,513)	
Denominator:					
Basic:					
Weighted average number of common shares used to compute basic net loss per share	26,067	25,467	25,865	25,266	
Diluted:					
Weighted average number of common shares used to compute basic net loss per share	26,067	25,467	25,865	25,266	
Effect of potentially dilutive securities:					
Stock options, RSUs and ESPP shares	_	_	_	_	
Weighted average number of common shares used to compute diluted net loss per share	26,067	25,467	25,865	25,266	
Net loss per share:					
Basic	\$(0.13		\$(0.11	) \$(0.06)	
Diluted	\$(0.13	) \$(0.52)	\$(0.11	) \$(0.06)	
6					

# ALPHA AND OMEGA SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited)

The following potential dilutive securities were excluded from the computation of diluted net loss per share as their effect would have been anti-dilutive:

	Three Months Ended March		Nine Months Ended Mar		
	31,		31,		
	2014	2013	2014	2013	
	(in thousands)				
Employee stock options and RSUs	3,660	4,119	3,907	3,218	
ESPP to purchase common shares	539	858	609	453	
Total potential dilutive securities	4,199	4,977	4,516	3,671	

#### 3. Concentration of Credit Risk and Significant Customers

The Company manages its credit risk associated with exposure to distributors and direct customers on outstanding accounts receivable through the application of credit approvals, credit ratings and other monitoring procedures. In some instances, the Company also obtains letters of credit from certain customers.

Credit sales, which are mainly on credit terms of 30 to 60 days, are only made to customers who meet the Company's credit requirements, while sales to new customers or customers with low credit ratings are usually made on an advance payment basis. The Company considers its financial assets to be of good credit quality because its key distributors and direct customers have long-standing business relationships with the Company and the Company has not experienced any significant bad debt write-offs of accounts receivable in the past. The Company closely monitors the aging of accounts receivable from its distributors and direct customers, and regularly reviews their financial positions, when available.

Summarized below are individual customers whose revenue or accounts receivable balances were 10% or higher than the respective total consolidated amounts:

	Three Mor	nths	Ended N	<b>I</b> arch	Nine M	ontl	ns E	nded Mar	ch
	31,				31,				
Percentage of revenue	2014		2013		2014			2013	
Customer A	20.1	%	21.4	%	21.1		%	23.2	%
Customer B	44.9	%	45.5	%	43.8		%	43.5	%
Customer C	11.2	%	10.8	%	12.0		%	12.0	%
				March	31,		Jun	ne 30,	
Percentage of accounts receivable				2014			201	13	
Customer A				21.6		%	33.	8	%
Customer B				34.6		%	22.	6	%
Customer C				15.9		%	19.	9	%

#### 4. Balance Sheet Components

Accounts receivable:

	maich 31,	June 30,	
	2014	2013	
	(in thousands	)	
Accounts receivable	\$50,733	\$52,202	
Less: Allowance for price adjustments	(13,552	) (13,152	)
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts	(30	) (752	)
Accounts receivable, net	\$37,151	\$38,298	

March 31

June 30

Inventories:

# ALPHA AND OMEGA SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited)

	March 31, 2014 (in thousands)	June 30, 2013	
Raw materials	\$17,034	\$17,248	
Work in-process	35,929	38,618	
Finished goods	6,839	12,473	
	\$59,802	\$68,339	
Property, plant and equipment, net:			
	March 31,	June 30,	
	2014	2013	
	(in thousands)		
Land	\$4,950	\$4,950	
Building	4,106	4,106	
Manufacturing machinery and equipment	159,963	156,958	
Equipment and tooling	10,453	10,356	
Computer equipment and software	17,152	16,140	
Office furniture and equipment	1,618	1,559	
Leasehold improvements	24,674	24,068	
	222,916	218,137	
Less: Accumulated depreciation	(107,737	) (87,180	)
	115,179	130,957	
Equipment and construction in progress	8,507	7,154	
Property, plant and equipment, net	\$123,686	\$138,111	
Other long-term assets:			
	March 31,	June 30,	
	2014	2013	
	(in thousands)		
Prepayments for property and equipment	\$1,089	\$77	
Investment in a privately held company	100	100	
Deferred debt issuance cost	21	91	
Office leases deposits	408	499	
	\$1,618	\$767	
Accrued liabilities:			
8			

# ALPHA AND OMEGA SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited)

	March 31,	June 30,
	2014	2013
	(in thousands)	
Accrued salaries and wages	\$4,102	\$3,079
Accrued vacation	1,398	2,078
Accrued bonuses	946	880
Warranty accrual	1,181	1,428
Stock rotation accrual	2,794	1,572
Accrued professional fees	731	918
ESPP payable	767	353
Customer deposits	107	123
Other accrued expenses	4,884	4,140
	\$16.910	\$14.571

# ALPHA AND OMEGA SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited)

The activities in the warranty accrual, included in accrued liabilities, are as follows:

,	Nine Months Ended March 31,			
	2014	2013		
	(in thousands)			
Beginning balance	\$1,428	\$1,556		
Additions	939	117		
Utilization	(1,186	) (699	)	
Ending balance	\$1,181	\$974		
The activities in the stock rotation accrual, included in accrued liabilities, are as	follows:			
	Nine Months Ended March 31,			
	2014	2013		
	(in thousands)			
Beginning balance	\$1,572	\$2,032		
Additions	3,702	4,349		
Utilization	(2,480	) (4,871	)	
Ending balance	\$2,794	\$1,510		

#### 5. Debt

On May 11, 2012, the Company entered into a loan agreement with a financial institution that provides a term loan of \$20.0 million for general purposes and a \$10.0 million non-revolving credit line for the purchase of equipment. Both the term loan and equipment line will be fully repayable in May 2015. The borrowings may be made in the form of either Eurodollar loans or Base Rate loans. Eurodollar loans accrue interest based on an adjusted London Interbank Offered Rate ("LIBOR") as defined in the agreement, plus a margin of 1.00% to 1.75%. Base Rate loans accrue interest at the highest of (a) the lender's Prime Rate, (b) the Federal Funds Rate plus 0.5% and (c) the Eurodollar Rate (for a one-month interest period) plus 1%; plus a margin of -0.5% to 0.25%. The applicable margins for both Eurodollar loans and Base Rate loans will vary from time to time in the foregoing ranges based on the cash and cash equivalent balances maintained by the Company and its subsidiaries with the lender. In May 2013, the equipment credit line expired and there was no outstanding balance. As of March 31, 2014 and June 30, 2013, the outstanding balances of the term loan were \$14.3 million and \$17.1 million, respectively. Of the \$14.3 million and \$17.1 million term loan, \$2.9 million and \$3.6 million were included as short-term debt as of March 31, 2014 and June 30, 2013, respectively.

The obligations under the term loan are secured by substantially all assets of two subsidiaries of the Company, including, but not limited to, certain real property and related assets located at the Oregon fab. In addition, the Company and certain subsidiaries of the Company have agreed to guarantee full repayment and performance of the obligations under the loan agreement. The loan agreement contains customary restrictive covenants and includes certain financial covenants that require the Company to maintain on a consolidated basis specified financial ratios including total liabilities to tangible net worth, fixed charge coverage and current assets to current liabilities. As of March 31, 2014, the Company was in compliance with these covenants.

During July 2012, the Company entered into a loan agreement with the State of Oregon for an amount of \$0.3 million. The loan is required to be used for training new and re-training existing employees of the Oregon Fab. The loan bears a compound annual interest rate of 5.0% and is to be repaid in April 2014. The State of Oregon may forgive the outstanding balance under the loan and any unpaid interest if the Company meets certain conditions primarily relating to hiring targets. Currently the State of Oregon is reviewing the loan to determine whether such conditions are satisfied. The Company believes that it is more likely than not that it will meet those hiring targets. As of March 31,

and June 30, 2013, the outstanding balance and accrued interest of the loan, included in short term debt, was \$0.3 million and \$0.3 million, respectively.

# ALPHA AND OMEGA SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited)

# 6. Shareholders' Equity and Share-based Compensation Share Repurchase

On October 22, 2010, the Company's Board of Directors authorized a \$25.0 million share repurchase program. Under this repurchase program the Company may, from time to time, repurchase shares from the open market or in privately negotiated transactions, subject to supervision and oversight by the Board. The Company accounts for treasury stock under the cost method. Shares repurchased are accounted for as treasury shares and the total cost of shares repurchased is recorded as a reduction of shareholders' equity. From time to time, treasury shares may be reissued as part of the Company's stock-based compensation programs. Gains on re-issuance of treasury stock are credited to additional paid-in capital; losses are charged to additional paid-in capital to offset the net gains, if any, from previous sales or re-issuance of treasury stock. Any remaining balance of the losses are charged to retained earnings. During the three and nine months ended March 31, 2014, the Company did not repurchased any shares under the program. During the three and nine months ended March 31, 2014, the Company reissued 2,900 and 5,850 shares, respectively, with weighted average repurchase cost of \$13.82 per share for both periods, upon vesting of certain restricted stock units ("RSU").

On or about May 5, 2014, the Company's Board of Directors approved to reactivate the share repurchase program with a remaining balance of \$22.7 million.

Weighted

#### **Stock Options**

The following table summarizes the Company's stock option activities for the nine months ended March 31, 2014:

		Weighted	
		Average	
	Number of	<b>Exercise Price</b>	Aggregate
	Shares	Per Share	Intrinsic Value
Outstanding at June 30, 2013	3,593,854	\$10.24	\$3,144,506
Granted	734,375	\$7.45	
Exercised	(255,471	) \$1.82	\$1,435,044
Canceled or forfeited	(633,421	) \$11.92	
Outstanding at March 31, 2014	3,439,337	\$9.96	\$1,542,180

Information with respect to stock options outstanding and exercisable at March 31, 2014 is as follows:

	Options Outs	tanding		Exercisable	ou unu
		Weighted-Average	;		
	Number	Remaining	Weighted-Avera	ag <b>N</b> umber	Weighted-Average
	Outstanding	Contractual Life (years)	Exercise Price	Exercisable	Exercise Price
Total options outstanding	3,439,337	5.88	\$ 9.96	2,335,327	\$ 10.43
Options vested and expected to vest	3,333,914	5.77	\$ 10.02		

Options expected to vest are the result of applying the pre-vesting forfeiture rate assumption to total outstanding options.

The fair value of stock options granted were estimated at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option valuation model for the nine months ended March 31, 2014 with the following weighted average assumptions:

Nine Months Ended March 31, 2014

Options Vested and

Volatility rate	47%
Risk-free interest rate	1.6% - 1.7%
Expected term	5.5 years
Dividend yield	0%

# ALPHA AND OMEGA SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited)

#### Restricted Stock Units ("RSU")

The following table summarizes the Company's RSU activities for the nine months ended March 31, 2014:

	Number of Restricted Stock Units	Weighted Average Grant Date Fair Value Per Share	Weighted Average Remaining Recognition Period (Years)	Aggregate Intrinsic Value
Nonvested at June 30, 2013	549,553	\$ 9.50	1.87	\$4,198,585
Granted	338,554	\$ 7.48		
Vested	(122,963)	\$ 9.50		
Forfeited	(98,102)	\$ 9.71		
Nonvested at March 31, 2014	667,042	\$ 8.44	1.95	\$4,909,429
RSUs vested and expected to vest	593,184		1.88	\$4,365,832

The fair value of RSU is estimated based on the market price of the Company's share on the date of grant.

Employee Share Purchase Plan

The Employee Share Purchase Plan (the "ESPP") was established in May 2010 upon the completion of the Company's initial public offering. The assumptions used to estimate the fair values of common shares issued under the ESPP were as follows:

	Nine Months Ended March
	31,
	2014
Volatility rate	50%
Risk-free interest rate	0.1% - 0.3%
Expected term	1.3 years
Dividend yield	0%

Share-based Compensation Expense

The total share-based compensation expense related to stock options, ESPP and RSUs described above, recognized in the condensed consolidated statements of operations for the periods presented was as follows:

	Three Mon	nths Ended March	Nine Months Ended March		
	31,	31,			
	2014	2013	2014	2013	
	(in thousands)		(in thousan	ids)	
Cost of goods sold	\$119	\$191	\$457	\$530	
Research and development	221	353	484	1,024	
Selling, general and administrative	521	678	1,234	2,022	
	\$861	\$1,222	\$2,175	\$3,576	

Total unrecognized stock-based compensation expense as of March 31, 2014 was \$6.8 million, which includes estimated forfeitures and is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 1.7 years.

#### 7. Income Taxes

The Company recognized income tax expense of approximately \$0.4 million for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and income tax benefit of \$3,000 for the three months ended March 31, 2013. The Company recognized income tax expense of approximately \$2.5 million and \$2.9 million for the nine months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The estimated effective tax rate was (12.3)% and 0.0% for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The estimated effective tax rate was (729.0)% and 209.6% for the nine months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The negative effective tax rate for the three and the nine months ended March 31, 2014

was primarily due to the changes in the mix of

# ALPHA AND OMEGA SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited)

earnings in various geographic jurisdictions between the two periods along with a recognition of approximately \$1.0 million previously unrecognized tax benefits and related interest accruals following the lapse of the applicable statute of limitations.

The Company files its income tax returns in the United States and in various foreign jurisdictions. The tax years 2001 to 2013 remain open to examination by U.S. federal and state tax authorities. The tax years 2005 to 2013 remain open to examination by foreign tax authorities.

The Company's income tax returns are subject to examinations by the Internal Revenue Service and other tax authorities in various jurisdictions. In accordance with the guidance on the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes, the Company regularly assesses the likelihood of adverse outcomes resulting from these examinations to determine the adequacy of its provision for income taxes. These assessments can require considerable estimates and judgments. As of March 31, 2014, the gross amount of unrecognized tax benefits was approximately \$6.7 million. If the Company's estimate of income tax liabilities proves to be less than the ultimate assessment, then a further charge to expense would be required. If events occur and the payment of these amounts ultimately proves to be unnecessary, the reversal of the liabilities would result in tax benefits being recognized in the period when the Company determines the liabilities are no longer necessary. The Company does not anticipate any material changes to its uncertain tax positions during the next twelve months.

#### 8. Segment and Geographic Information

The Company is organized as, and operates in, one operating segment: the design, development and supply of power semiconductor products for computing, consumer electronics, communication and industrial applications. The chief operating decision-maker is the Chief Executive Officer. The financial information presented to the Company's Chief Executive Officer is on a consolidated basis, accompanied by information about revenue by customer and geographic region, for purposes of evaluating financial performance and allocating resources. The Company has one business segment, and there are no segment managers who are held accountable for operations, operating results and plans for products or components below the consolidated unit level. Accordingly, the Company reports as a single operating segment.

The Company sells its products primarily to distributors in the Asia Pacific region, who in turn sell these products to end customers. Because the Company's distributors sell their products to end customers which may have a global presence, revenue by geographical location is not necessarily representative of the geographical distribution of sales to end user markets.

The revenue by geographical location in the following tables is based on the country or region to which the products were shipped to:

	Three Months Ended March			Ended March
	31,		31,	
	2014	2013	2014	2013
	(in thousands)		(in thousands)	
Hong Kong	\$65,026	\$62,927	\$200,511	\$208,805
China	8,497	9,765	29,545	42,730
South Korea	775	1,162	2,317	4,822
United States	513	399	1,411	1,055
Other countries	594	762	2,007	2,812
	\$75,405	\$75,015	\$235,791	\$260,224

The following is a summary of revenue by product type:

Three Months Ended March 31, Nine Months Ended March 31,

	2014	2013	2014	2013
	(in thousands) (in thousands)			
Power discrete	\$58,563	\$58,374	\$182,654	\$204,679
Power IC	12,844	12,252	39,682	39,719
Packaging and testing services	3,998	4,389	13,455	15,826
	\$75,405	\$75,015	\$235,791	\$260,224

# ALPHA AND OMEGA SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited)

Long-lived assets, net consisting of property, plant and equipment, by geographical area are as follows:

	March 31,	June 30,
	2014	2013
	(in thousands)	
China	\$82,955	\$93,663
United States	40,326	43,946
Other Countries	405	502
	\$123,686	\$138.111

#### 9. Commitments and Contingencies

#### **Purchase Commitments**

As of March 31, 2014 and June 30, 2013, the Company had approximately \$34.9 million and \$25.8 million, respectively, of outstanding purchase commitments primarily for purchases of semiconductor raw materials, wafers, spare parts and packaging and testing services, and approximately \$3.0 million and \$0.4 million, respectively, of capital commitments for the purchase of property and equipment.

#### Contingencies and Indemnities

The Company is currently not a party to any pending material legal proceedings. The Company has in the past, and may from time to time in the future, become involved in legal proceedings arising from the normal course of business activities. The semiconductor industry is characterized by frequent claims and litigation, including claims regarding patent and other intellectual property rights as well as improper hiring practices. Irrespective of the validity of such claims, the Company may incur significant costs in the defense of such claims and suffer adverse effects on its operations.

The Company is a party to a variety of agreements that it has contracted with various third parties. Pursuant to these agreements, the Company may be obligated to indemnify another party to such an agreement with respect to certain matters. Typically, these obligations arise in the context of contracts entered into by the Company, under which the Company customarily agrees to hold the other party harmless against losses arising from a breach of representations and covenants related to such matters as title to assets sold, certain intellectual property rights, specified environmental matters and certain income taxes. In these circumstances, payment by the Company is customarily conditioned on the other party making a claim pursuant to the procedures specified in the particular contract, which procedures typically allow the Company to challenge the other party's claim. Further, the Company's obligations under these agreements may be limited in time and/or amount, and in some instances, the Company may have recourse against third parties for certain payments made by it under these agreements. The Company has not historically paid or recorded any material indemnifications and no accrual has been made at March 31, 2014 and June 30, 2013.

The Company has agreed to indemnify its directors and certain employees as permitted by law and pursuant to its bye-laws, and has entered into indemnification agreements with its directors and executive officers. The Company has not recorded a liability associated with these indemnification arrangements, as it historically has not incurred any material costs associated with such indemnification obligations. Costs associated with such indemnification obligations may be mitigated by insurance coverage that the Company maintains. However, such insurance may not cover any, or may cover only a portion of, the amounts the Company may be required to pay. In addition, the Company may not be able to maintain such insurance coverage in the future.

# ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Except for the historical information contained herein, the matters addressed in this Item 2 constitute "forward-looking statements" within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Such forward-looking statements are subject to a variety of risks and uncertainties, including those discussed below under the heading "Risk Factors" and elsewhere in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, that could cause actual results to differ materially from those anticipated by the Company's management. The Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 (the "Act") provides certain "safe harbor" provisions for forward-looking statements. All forward-looking statements made in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q are made pursuant to the Act. The Company undertakes no obligation to publicly release the results of any revisions to its forward-looking statements that may be made to reflect events or circumstances after the date hereof or to reflect the occurrence of unexpected events. Unless the context otherwise requires, the words "AOS," the "Company," "we," "us" and "or refer to Alpha and Omega Semiconductor Limited and its subsidiaries.

This management's discussion should be read in conjunction with the management's discussion included in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 30, 2013.

Overview

We are a designer, developer and global supplier of a broad portfolio of power semiconductors. Our portfolio of power semiconductors includes over 1,400 products, and has grown rapidly with the introduction of over 195 new products during the fiscal year 2013, and over 240 and 190 new products in the fiscal years 2012 and 2011, respectively. During the nine months ended March 31, 2014, we introduced an additional 127 new products. Our teams of scientists and engineers have developed extensive intellectual properties and technical knowledge that encompass major aspects of power semiconductors, which we believe enables us to introduce and develop innovative products to address the increasingly complex power requirements of advanced electronics. We have an extensive patent portfolio that consists of 392 patents and 205 patent applications in the United States as of March 31, 2014. We differentiate ourselves by integrating our expertise in technology, design and advanced packaging to optimize product performance and cost. Our portfolio of products targets high-volume applications, including personal computers, flat panel TVs, LED lighting, smart phones, battery packs, consumer and industrial motor controls and power supplies for TVs, computers, servers and telecommunications equipment.

Our business model leverages global resources, including research and development and manufacturing in the United States and Asia. Our sales and technical support teams are localized in several growing markets. We operate a 200mm wafer fabrication facility located in Hillsboro, Oregon, ("the Oregon fab") which is critical for us to accelerate proprietary technology development and new product introduction and to improve our financial performance in the long run. For example, in calendar year 2012 and 2013, we were able to triple the number of new technology platforms released as compared to prior years. These platforms have allowed us to develop a new generation of low voltage MOSFET products, our Gen 5 AlphaMOS, and introduce AlphaMOSII high voltage technology and new medium voltage products. To meet the market demand for the more mature high volume products, we also utilize the wafer manufacturing capacity of selected third party foundries. For assembly and test, we primarily rely upon our in-house facilities in China. We believe our in-house packaging and testing capability provides us with a competitive advantage in proprietary packaging technology, product quality, cost and cycle time.

In response to the continuing decline of the PC markets, we implemented certain cost cutting measures such as Company shut downs, headcount reduction and compensation reduction of selected employees during the quarter ended December 31, 2013. The compensation of those selected employees has been reinstated to the previous level starting January 2014.

Factors affecting our performance

Our performance is affected by several key factors, including the following:

The global, regional economic and PC market conditions: Because our products primarily serve consumer electronic applications, a deterioration of the global and regional economic conditions could materially affect our revenue and

results of operations. In particular, because a significant amount of our revenue is derived from sales of products in the personal computing ("PC") markets, such as notebooks, motherboards and notebook battery packs, a significant decline or downturn in the PC markets can have a material adverse effect on our revenue and results of operations. Our revenue from the PC markets accounted for approximately 42.8% and 47.6% of our total revenue for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, and 44.7% and 51.4% for the nine months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Since the beginning of calendar year 2013,

we have experienced a significant global decline in the PC markets due to continued growth of demand in tablets and smart phones, worldwide economic conditions and the industry inventory correction which had and may continue to have a material negative impact on the demand for our products, revenue, factory utilization, gross margin, our ability to resell excess inventory, and other performance measures.

In response to this trend, we have been executing and are continuing to execute strategies to diversify our product portfolio and penetrate other market segments, such as the consumer, communication and industrial market segments, which we believe will mitigate and eventually overcome the reduced demand resulting from the declining PC markets. As we develop and sell new products that serve more diversified markets, we expect that sales based on the PC markets, as a percentage of the total revenue, will continue to decline. However, if the rate of decline in the PC markets is faster than we expect, or if we cannot successfully diversify or introduce new products to keep pace with the declining PC markets, we may not be able to alleviate its negative impact, which will adversely affect our results of operations.

Manufacturing costs: Our gross margin may be affected by our manufacturing costs, including utilization of our own manufacturing facilities, pricing of wafers from other foundries and semiconductor raw materials, which may fluctuate from time to time largely due to the market demand and supply. Capacity utilization affects our gross margin because we have certain fixed costs associated with our in-house packaging and testing facilities and our Oregon fab. If we are unable to utilize the capacity of our in-house manufacturing facilities at a desired level, our gross margin may be adversely affected. In addition, the continuing decline of the PC markets as discussed above as well as the cost cutting measures such as Company shut downs during the quarter ended December 31, 2013, contributed to a reduced level of capacity utilization at our manufacturing facilities. If we are not able to mitigate the negative impact of the declining PC markets, we may not be able to improve our factory utilization or offset the increasing manufacturing costs, which could have a material adverse effect on our gross margin.

Erosion of average selling price: Erosion of average selling prices of established products is typical in our industry. Consistent with this historical trend, we expect that average selling prices of our existing products will continue to decline in the future. However, in the normal course of business, we seek to offset the effect of declining average selling prices by introducing new and higher value products, expanding existing products for new applications and new customers, and reducing the manufacturing cost of existing products.

Product introductions and customers' product requirements: Our success depends on our ability to introduce products on a timely basis that meet or are compatible with our customers' specifications and performance requirements. Both factors, timeliness of product introductions and conformance to customers' requirements, are important in securing design wins with our customers. We have introduced new mid- and high-voltage products as part of our business strategy to diversify our product portfolios and penetrate new markets such as the power supply and industrial markets. As we accelerate the development of new technology platforms, we expect to increase the pace at which we introduce new products and obtain design wins. Our failure to introduce new products on a timely basis that meet customers' specifications and performance requirements and our inability to continue to expand our serviceable markets could adversely affect our financial performance, including loss of market share with customers.

In addition, our financial performance may decline if we experience significant product compatibility issues. We recorded a non-cash, non-recurring inventory valuation charge in the amount of \$7.7 million during the quarter ended March 31, 2013, approximately \$5.7 million of which was attributable to newly developed products for desktop PC applications for a major OEM because these products were not compatible with its particular applications. While we have resolved this issue with the OEM, similar product compatibility issues may arise with other products or OEMs, and the solutions we implemented may not be fully effective in preventing future occurrences.

Distributor ordering patterns and seasonality: Our distributors place purchase orders with us based on their forecasts of end customer demand, and this demand may vary significantly depending on the sales outlooks and market and economic conditions of end customers. Because these forecasts may not be accurate, channel inventory held at our

distributors may fluctuate significantly, which in turn may prompt distributors to make significant adjustments to their purchase orders placed with us. As a result, our revenue and operating results may fluctuate significantly from quarter to quarter. In addition, because our products are used in consumer electronics products, our revenue is subject to seasonality. Our sales seasonality is affected by numerous factors, including global and regional economic conditions as well as the PC market conditions, revenue generated from new products, changes in distributor ordering patterns in response to channel inventory adjustments and end customer demand for our products and fluctuations in consumer purchase patterns prior to major holiday seasons. In recent periods, broad fluctuations in the semiconductor markets and the global and regional economic conditions, and in particular the decline of the PC market conditions, have had a more significant impact on our results of operations than seasonality.

Principal line items of statements of operations

The following describes the principal line items set forth in our condensed consolidated statements of operations: Revenue

We generate revenue primarily from the sale of power semiconductors, consisting of power discretes and power ICs. Historically, a majority of our revenue was derived from power discrete products and a smaller amount was derived from power IC products. Because our products typically have three-year to five-year life cycles, the rate of new product introduction is an important driver of revenue growth over time. We believe that expanding the breadth of our product portfolio is important to our business prospects, because it provides us with an opportunity to increase our total bill-of-materials within an electronic system and to address the power requirements of additional electronic systems. In addition, a small percentage of our total revenue is generated by providing packaging and testing services to third-parties through one of our subsidiaries.

Our product revenue includes the effect of the estimated stock rotation returns and price adjustments that we expect to provide to our distributors. Stock rotation returns are governed by contract and are limited to a specified percentage of the monetary value of products purchased by the distributor during a specified period. At our discretion or upon our direct negotiations with the original design manufacturers ("ODMs") or original equipment manufacturers ("OEMs"), we may elect to grant special pricing that is below the prices at which we sold our products to the distributors. We estimate for the price adjustments for inventory at the distributors based on factors such as distributor inventory levels, pre-approved future distributor selling prices, distributor margins and demand for our products. Cost of goods sold

Our cost of goods sold primarily consists of costs associated with semiconductor wafers, packaging and testing, personnel, including share-based compensation expense, overhead attributable to manufacturing, operations and procurement, and cost associated with yield improvements, capacity utilization, warranty and inventory reserves. As the volume of sales increases, we expect cost of goods sold to increase. We have recently implemented a process to improve our factory capacity utilization rates by transferring more wafer production to our Oregon fab and reducing our reliance on outside foundries. While our utilization rates cannot be immune to the market conditions, our goal is to make such rates less vulnerable to market fluctuations. We believe our market diversification strategy and product growth will drive higher volumes of manufacturing which will improve our factory utilization rates and gross margin in the long run.

#### Operating expenses

Our operating expenses consist of research and development, selling, general and administrative expenses. We expect our operating expenses as a percentage of revenue to fluctuate from period to period as we continue to exercise cost control measures in response to the declining PC markets as well as align our operating expenses to the revenue level. Research and development expenses. Our research and development expenses consist primarily of salaries, bonuses, benefits, share-based compensation expense, expenses associated with new product prototypes, travel expenses, fees for engineering services provided by outside contractors and consultants, amortization of software and design tools, depreciation of equipment and overhead costs for research and development personnel. We continue to invest in developing new technologies and products utilizing our own fabrication and packaging facilities as it is critical to our long-term success. We will also evaluate appropriate investment levels and stay focused on new product introductions to improve our competitiveness. We expect that our research and development expenses will fluctuate from time to time.

Selling, general and administrative expenses. Our selling, general and administrative expenses consist primarily of salaries, bonuses, benefits, share-based compensation expense, product promotion costs, occupancy costs, travel expenses, expenses related to sales and marketing activities, amortization of software, depreciation of equipment, maintenance costs and other expenses for general and administrative functions as well as costs for outside professional services, including legal, audit and accounting services. We expect our selling, general and administrative expenses to fluctuate in the near future as we continue to exercise cost control measures in response to the declining PC markets. Income tax expense

We are subject to income taxes in various jurisdictions. Significant judgment and estimates are required in determining our worldwide income tax expense. The calculation of tax liabilities involves dealing with uncertainties in the application of complex tax regulations of different jurisdictions globally. We establish accruals for potential liabilities and contingencies based on a more likely than not threshold to the recognition and de-recognition of uncertain tax positions. If the recognition threshold is met, the applicable accounting guidance permits us to recognize a tax benefit measured at the largest amount of tax benefit that is more

likely than not to be realized upon settlement with a taxing authority. If the actual tax outcome of such exposures is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, the differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made. Changes in the location of taxable income (loss) could result in significant changes in our income tax expense.

We record a valuation allowance against deferred tax assets if it is more likely than not that a portion of the deferred tax assets will not be realized, based on historical profitability and our estimate of future taxable income in a particular jurisdiction. Our judgments regarding future taxable income may change due to changes in market conditions, changes in tax laws, tax planning strategies or other factors. If our assumptions and consequently our estimates change in the future, the deferred tax assets may increase or decrease, resulting in corresponding changes in income tax expense. Our effective tax rate is highly dependent upon the geographic distribution of our worldwide profits or losses, the tax laws and regulations in each geographical region where we have operations, the availability of tax credits and carry-forwards and the effectiveness of our tax planning strategies.

#### **Results of Operations**

The following tables set forth statements of operations, also expressed as a percentage of revenue, for the three and nine months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013. Our historical results of operations are not necessarily indicative of the results for any future period.

• •	Three Months Ended March 31,			Nine Months Ended March 31,								
	2014	2013	2014		2013		2014	2013	2014		2013	
	(in thousa	nds)	(% of re	ever	nue)		(in thousand	ds)	(% of re	evei	ıue)	
Revenue	\$75,405	\$75,015	100.0	%	100.0	%	\$235,791	\$260,224	100.0	%	100.0	%
Cost of goods sold	63,095	69,770	83.7	%	93.0	%	192,711	208,852	81.7	%	80.3	%
Gross profit	12,310	5,245	16.3	%	7.0	%	43,080	51,372	18.3	%	19.7	%
Operating expenses												
Research and	5,977	6,876	7.9	0%	9.2	0%	17,796	20,675	7.5	0%	7.9	%
development	3,911	0,070	1.9	70	9.2	70	17,790	20,073	1.5	70	1.9	70
Selling, general and	9,256	8,917	12.3	%	11.9	%	25,505	26,536	10.8	%	10.2	%
administrative	7,230	0,717	12.3	70	11.7	70	23,303	20,330	10.0	70	10.2	70
Impairment of long-lived	l	2,557		0%	3.4	0/0	_	2,557		%	1.0	%
assets		2,331		70	J. <del>T</del>	70		2,337		70	1.0	70
Total operating expenses	15,233	18,350	20.2	%	24.5	%	43,301	49,768	18.3	%	19.1	%
Operating income (loss)	(2,923)	(13,105)	(3.9	)%	(17.5	)%	(221)	1,604	(0.1)	)%	0.6	%
Interest income	52	22	0.1	%		%	90	59		%		%
Interest expense	(62)	(93)	(0.1)									